
Ridgeway Shared 
Services Partnership 

  

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

MEETING Ridgeway Shared Service Partnership Strategic Board 
 

DATE/ 
TIME 

Monday, 28th July, 2008 
8.30 am 

PLACE CONFERENCE ROOM 1, FIRST FLOOR, THE ABBEY HOUSE, 
ABINGDON 
 

CONTACT OFFICER Name: Steve Culliford 
Telephone: 01235 540307 
E-mail: steve.culliford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 
Websites: www.southoxon.gov.uk and www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

 
 
The Ridgeway Shared Services Partnership aims to increase access to its public meetings.  Reports 
can be accessed on the websites at www.southoxon.gov.uk and www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk.   You can 
contact the officer named above for printed copies. 
 
Membership  
 
Councillor Representing 
Mrs E A Ducker South Oxfordshire District Council  
Mr I R Mann South Oxfordshire District Council 
Mrs M De Vere Vale of White Horse District Council 
Mr T De Vere Vale of White Horse District Council 

 

Terry Stock 
Chief Executive 
Vale of White Horse District Council 
 
17 July 2008 



Ridgeway Shared Service Partnership Strategic Board Monday, 28th July, 2008 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

Open to the Public including the Press 
 
  
Map   
 

(Page 4) 
 

Attached is a map showing the location of the venue for this meeting.   
 
 
1. Election of a Chair/Chairman  
 

 
   

 To elect a Chair or Chairman of the Ridgeway Shared Services Partnership Strategic 
Board.   
 
In accordance with paragraph 5.3 of Schedule 1 of the Partnership's Constitution: 
 
"The post of Chairman of the Board shall be held by a Member and shall rotate 
automatically between the Partner Authorities every two years in accordance with the 
terms set out in the Agreement.  The first such Chairman shall be a Board Member for 
South Oxfordshire District Council who shall undertake the responsibilities of the 
Chairman with effect from the 1 October 2007 until the date of the Annual General 
Meeting in 2008 of each Partner Authority on which date the Chair of the Strategic 
Board will pass to a Board Member of the Vale of White Horse District Council."   
 

2. Election of a Vice-Chair/Chairman  
 

 
   

 To elect a Vice-Chair or Vice-Chairman of the Ridgeway Shared Services Partnership 
Strategic Board.   
 
In accordance with paragraph 5.4 of Schedule 1 of the Partnership's Constitution: 
 
"In the absence of the Chairman, for any reason, the responsibilities of the Chairman 
will be discharged by the Vice-Chairman, which post shall be held by a Board Member 
for the other Partner Authority."   
 

3. Apologies for Absence  
 

 
   

 To receive apologies for absence.   
 

4. Minutes  
 

 (Pages 5 - 8)    

 To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Ridgeway Shared Services 
Partnership Strategic Board meeting held on 12 May 2008.   
 

5. Declarations of Interest  
 

 
   

 To receive any declarations of interest.   



Ridgeway Shared Service Partnership Strategic Board Monday, 28th July, 2008 
 

 
6. Minutes of the Operations Board  
 

 (Pages 9 - 20)    

 To receive and note the minutes of the Ridgeway Shared Services Partnership 
Operations Board meetings held on 28 April and 16 June 2008.   
 

7. Performance Monitoring  
 

 (Pages 21 - 44)    

 To consider the monthly summary dated June 2008 and the appendices (attached), 
including updates on: 

• Capita Performance 

• Contact Centre Statistics with appendices 

• Internal Audit 

• Accountancy 

• Counter-Fraud Service 
 

8. Banking Contract  
 

 
   

 To receive an update at the meeting on the banking contract.   
 

9. Any Other Business  
 

  

10. Dates of Forthcoming Meetings  
 

 
   

 To note that rooms have been booked for the forthcoming meetings of the Strategic 
Board: 

• Monday 3 November 2008 

• Monday 2 February 2009 

• Tuesday 5 May 2009 (avoiding May Day Bank Holiday Monday) 
 
All of these meetings will be held the Vale of White Horse District Council's offices at 
The Abbey House, Abingdon, and each meeting will start at 8.30am.    
 

 



R I V E R O C K

R
IV

E
R

T
H

A
M

E
S

W
I L

S
H

A
M

 
R

D

A34 TO

OXFORD &

M40 JCT 9

OPEN AIR

SWIMMING POOL

OPEN AIR

SWIMMING POOL

WATER

FEATURE

WATER

FEATURE

ABBEY MEADOW
ABBEY

GARDENS

TESCOTESCO

WAITROSEWAITROSE

FAIRACRES

RETAIL

PARK

ABINGDON

COMMUNITY

HOSPITAL

ABINGDON

COMMUNITY

HOSPITAL

POLICE

HQ

POLICE

HQ

BURY ST

SHOPPING

PRECINCT

BURY ST

SHOPPING

PRECINCT

WHITE HORSE

LEISURE AND

TENNIS CENTRE

WHITE HORSE

LEISURE AND

TENNIS CENTRE

A415

M A R C H A M R D

O C K S T A 415A415

O
X

F
O

R
D

R
D

A
4

1
8

3

B
R

ID
G

E
S

T
A

4
1

5

S
T

R
A
T

T
O

N

W

AY

S
T

R
A
T

T
O

N

W

AY

S
T

E
R

T
S

T

H IG H S T

A
3

4

A
3

4

W
O

O
T

T
O

N
R
D

B
4

0
1
7

D
R

A
Y

T
O

N
R

D

B
4

0
1

7

A
B

B
E

Y
C

L
O

S
E

C A L D EC OT T R D

C A L D E C OT T R D

W
E

S
T

S
A

IN
T

H
E

L
E
N

S
T

B

A
R

TO N
L A N E

AU D L E T T D R I V E

A
U

D
L

E
T
T

D
R I V E

C
U

RT I S
AV E

R A D L E Y
R D

N
O

R
M

A
N

A
V

E
N

U
E

T
H

E
M
O

T

T E

A B B OT T R D

C
O

L
W

E
L

L
D

R
I V

E

N
U

F
F

I E
L

D
W

A
Y

S
P

R
IN

G
R

D

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 
R

D

C
O

N
D

U
I T

 
R

D

B O S TO C K R D

A B I N G D O N

A34 TO

M4 JCT 13 A415 TO

A4074,

READING

A4183 TO

A34, OXFORD

A415 TO

FARINGDON (A420) &

WANTAGE (A338)

NewburyNewbury

Reading

Wallingford

Kidlington

Bicester

Hemel

Hempstead

Aylesbury

High

Wycombe

Abingdon

Reading

MaidenheadMaidenhead SloughSlough

Wallingford

Kidlington

Bicester

Hemel

Hempstead

Aylesbury

High

Wycombe

A40
OxfordOxford

A40

A44

A34

A420A419

A417A417

A338

A4

A4

A417

A4074

A418

A40 A4010 A413

A40

A4130

A40

A44

A34

A420A419

A338

A338A338

A4

A4

A417

A4074

A418

A40 A4010 A413

A339A339

A40

A4130

A34A34

A34A34

A34A34

DidcotDidcot

Wantage

FaringdonFaringdon

Wantage

HEATHROW
AIRPORT

HEATHROW
AIRPORT

M4

M4

M4

M3
M25

M25

M11

M40

M40

M40

14 13
12

11

10

8/9 15

12

16

20

8

9

4

7
8

8a

9

Abingdon

A415A415

N

STRANAER

OS data. PU100040256. Crown     2008.

www.giveway.co.uk  2008   Tel: 0800 019 0027.

TM

Vale of White Horse District Council

Abbey House, Abbey Close, Abingdon, OX14 3JE

Tel: 01235 520202        Fax: 01235 532217

www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Abbey Close

Cattle Market

Charter Multi-storey

Civic

Rye Farm

Hales Meadow

Audlett Drive

West St Helen Street

KEY: Car Parks
OS data. PU100040256. Crown     2008.

www.giveway.co.uk  2008   Tel: 0800 019 0027.

TM

OLD

GAOL

OLD

GAOL

By rail – the nearest main line railway stations to Abingdon are either Didcot Parkway (seven miles) or Oxford (eight miles). Radley railway station is located on the main line between 

Oxford and Didcot and is three miles from Abingdon town centre. For details of train times visit www.nationalrail.co.uk or call 08457 484950

By bus – there are a number of bus routes serving Abingdon town centre. For details of services and timetables, visit Oxfordshire County Council’s website at 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk. Contact details for bus operators can be found on the travel information pages on our website www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Parking – details of car parks charges can be found on our website

B U R G E S S C LO S E

A
B

B
E

Y
C

L
O

S
E

A B B E Y C LO S E

TOWN

COUNCIL

TOWN

COUNCIL

DISTRICT

COUNCIL

DISTRICT

COUNCIL

GUILDHALLGUILDHALL

1

7

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

2

2

3

4

5
6

4

8

A
g

e
n

d
a
 A

n
n

e
x

P
a
g
e
 4



X:\Committee Documents\2008-2009 Cycle (1) May-July\RSSP_120508\Word
documents\RSSP_120508_minutes.doc

��������

Minutes

OF A MEETING OF THE

Ridgeway Shared Services Partnership

HELD AT 8.30 A.M. ON 12 MAY 2008

AT COUNCIL OFFICES, CROWMARSH GIFFORD

Present:

Mr I R Mann (Chairman)
Mrs E A Ducker
Mrs M de Vere
Mr T de Vere

Officers:

Mrs K Fiander, Mr W Jacobs, Mr M Prosser (South Oxfordshire District Council),
Mr S Bishop, Mr P Howden, (Vale of White Horse District Council),
Ms L Galvini, Mr G Hodges (Capita)

Apologies

None.

14. Minutes, 28 January 2008

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes dated 28 January 2008 and
agree that the chairman sign them.

15. Computer systems conversions

The committee considered the report of Mr S Bishop, Strategic Director, who advised
that recovery was complete. Mr G Hodges, Divisional Director, added that business
had progressed smoothly since the recovery plan had been completed
notwithstanding a few practical problems between departments.

Bank reconciliation

Mr W Jacobs, Head of Finance, reported that the chief accountant was satisfied that
South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) bank reconciliations were now complete.
There would always be a few small unidentifiable items and these would be cleared
to the revenue account.

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



X:\Committee Documents\2008-2009 Cycle (1) May-July\RSSP_120508\Word
documents\RSSP_120508_minutes.doc

��������

Acknowledging the need for both councils and Capita to work together to agree bank
reconciliation processes, committee members emphasised that it was important for
agreement to be reached. Processes should be in place by the mutually agreed date
of the end of June. If any problems were anticipated in keeping a commitment to this
date, committee members should be advised.

Budget monitoring

Responding to comments on budget monitoring Mr S Bishop, Strategic Director,
explained the enhancements to presentation of budget information using additional
software, Excelerator. Excelerator would provide greater functionality for users in
that data could be drawn from Agresso and used in an Excel-like format enabling, for
example, comparison of budgets at certain points in the current and previous years.

Responding to the comment that budget monitoring reports were required by the first
Monday in the month following period-end (i.e. the June report required by the first
Monday in July), Mr W Jacobs, Head of Finance, advised that he believed the reports
could be produced to that timescale and a report on budget monitoring timetables
would be brought to the next meeting of the committee. However, Mr S Bishop,
Strategic Director, advised that getting commitment from both councils and Capita
and the demand on Capita’s systems administrator’s time could lead to delays.
Committee members emphasised the urgency of this issue and the importance of a
harmonised approach between the two councils and requested a further report to the
next meeting.

16. Performance update

The committee considered performance updates as well as the reports of
Mr P Howden, Revenues and Benefits Client Manager for Vale of White Horse
District Council (VWHDC) and SODC; Ms A Penn, Audit Manager for VWHDC and
SODC; Mr S Hewings, Chief Accountant, SODC and Ms A Brander, VWHDC.

Vale of White Horse District Council

In relation to VWHDC:

• The exceptional performance of 1.86 days in relation to benefits performance
for change of circumstances during March occurred annually each March. This
was attributable to a large number of rent increases which were updated for the
beginning of the financial year.

• The final council tax collection rate of 98.4 per cent was the best ever
performance.

• Acknowledging comments about poor communication in relation to benefits
letters, such performance was not reflected in the reported benefits accuracy
figure. A report would be presented to the next meeting on quality procedures in
relation to benefits.

• The outstanding correspondence figures differed between 418 items
(VWHDC) and 2021 (SODC). This was considered attributable to the different

Page 6



X:\Committee Documents\2008-2009 Cycle (1) May-July\RSSP_120508\Word
documents\RSSP_120508_minutes.doc

��������

ways the document management systems were used by the two councils. A
conversion project was in progress to harmonise SODC’s system to the Capita
system operated at VWHDC.

• Performance on business rate collection was above the old top quartile figure
but below the new figure. Mr G Hodges, Divisional Director, reported that he
believed that future collection rates would be 1.5 per cent lower because of empty
properties being brought into full charge with effect from 1 April 2008.

South Oxfordshire District Council

In relation to SODC:

• As some people would continue to pay their current year’s council tax in a future
year, committee members would like figures for the full amount collected for
previous years on the collection of NNDR and council tax.

• The four per cent difference in direct debit take up between councils (74.31 per
cent VWHDC and 70.22 per cent SODC) was believed to be mainly attributable to
the fact that VWHDC had the facility to set up direct debits over the phone,
without paper instructions having to be completed. A project was ongoing to
improve take-up, including the introduction of the telephone facility at SODC.

• In terms of aged debtors, committee members emphasised that review meetings
should take place. Processes were needed that were agreed, acted on and
adhered to.

Contact centre statistics

Committee members expressed concern at the longest (20 minutes) wait on the
telephone. Mr G Hodges, Divisional Director, advised that this occurred during the
last week of March when council tax bills were despatched. Resources were
reallocated but the same situation occurred for all councils. One suggested
resolution to call-waiting time was to put an engaged tone on the line when a level of
capacity was achieved. A voicemail message could also be investigated as an
alternative. A report would come to the committee with any proposals to implement
either of these options.

Mr G Hodges, Divisional Director, would investigate the reported incident of
switchboard non-availability during April.

In relation to the Assisted Travel Scheme for the VWHDC, the 578 calls received had
been in excess of the usual level. Committee members commented on the need to
issue bus passes as soon as possible.

Accountancy

The budget book for VWHDC had been issued and was expected to be printed this
week at SODC.

Page 7



X:\Committee Documents\2008-2009 Cycle (1) May-July\RSSP_120508\Word
documents\RSSP_120508_minutes.doc

��������

Investigation team

Mr W Jacobs, Head of Finance, and Mr P Howden, Revenues and Benefits Client
Manager, reported that the team had performed very well even though it was now
short of two investigators. Recruitment for one post was taking place leaving one
post vacant. As this would result in fewer investigations, this would be addressed as
part of the budget considerations of the two authorities.

Committee members requested confirmation of the number of prosecutions by the
two councils.

17. Re-tendering the bank contract

Mr S Bishop, Strategic Director, reported that the VWHDC contract had been
engrossed and sealed.

In relation to terms and conditions within the SODC contract, committee members
expressed dissatisfaction with the intention to use SODC’s own terms and conditions
within the contract rather than the bank’s own.

18. Date of next meeting

The committee agreed that the next meetings of the Strategic Board would take
place on:

• Monday 28 July 2008

• Monday 3 November 2008

• Monday 2 February 2009

• Tuesday 5 May 2009 (avoiding May Day bank holiday Monday)

All of these meetings would be held at the Vale of White Horse District Council's
offices at The Abbey House, Abingdon, and each meeting would start at 8.30am.

The meeting closed at 9.40 a.m.

Chairman _____________________ Date _______________________

Page 8



Agenda Item 6

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Agenda Item 7

Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44


	Agenda
	Map
	4 Minutes
	6 Minutes of the Operations Board
	Operations Board Minutes 16 June 2008

	7 Performance Monitoring
	Appendices


